As Introduced

133rd General Assembly
Regular Session H. B. No. 37

2019-2020
Representatives Antani, Holmes, G.

Cosponsor: Representative Green

A BILL

To amend sections 109.73, 715.23, 901.80, 955.01,
955.02, 955.04, 955.10, 955.11, 955.12, 955.1¢6,
955.21, 955.22, 955.221, 955.222, 955.23,
955.24, 955.25, 955.261, 955.39, 955.43, 955.44,
955.50, and 955.54; to enact sections 955.13,
955.223, 955.224, 955.225, and 955.60; and to
repeal section 955.99 of the Revised Code to
revise the laws governing nuisance, dangerous,

and vicious dogs.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF OHIO:

Section 1. That sections 109.73, 715.23, 901.80, 955.01,
955.02, 955.04, 955.10, 955.11, 955.12, 955.16, 955.21, 955.22,
955.221, 955.222, 955.23, 955.24, 955.25, 955.261, 955.39,
955.43, 955.44, 955.50, and 955.54 be amended and sections
955.13, 955.223, 955.224, 955.225, and 955.60 of the Revised

Code be enacted to read as follows:

Sec. 109.73. (A) The Ohio peace officer training
commission shall recommend rules to the attorney general with

respect to all of the following:
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(1) The approval, or revocation of approval, of peace
officer training schools administered by the state, counties,
municipal corporations, public school districts, technical

college districts, and the department of natural resources;

(2) Minimum courses of study, attendance requirements, and
equipment and facilities to be required at approved state,
county, municipal, and department of natural resources peace

officer training schools;

(3) Minimum qualifications for instructors at approved
state, county, municipal, and department of natural resources

peace officer training schools;

(4) The requirements of minimum basic training that peace
officers appointed to probationary terms shall complete before
being eligible for permanent appointment, which requirements
shall include training in the handling of the offense of
domestic violence, other types of domestic violence-related
offenses and incidents, and protection orders and consent
agreements issued or approved under section 2919.26 or 3113.31
of the Revised Code; crisis intervention training; and training
in the handling of missing children and child abuse and neglect
cases; and training in handling violations of section 2905.32 of
the Revised Code; and the time within which such basic training

shall be completed following appointment to a probationary term;

(5) The requirements of minimum basic training that peace
officers not appointed for probationary terms but appointed on
other than a permanent basis shall complete in order to be
eligible for continued employment or permanent appointment,
which requirements shall include training in the handling of the
offense of domestic violence, other types of domestic violence-

related offenses and incidents, and protection orders and
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consent agreements issued or approved under section 2919.26 or
3113.31 of the Revised Code, crisis intervention training, and
training in the handling of missing children and child abuse and
neglect cases, and training in handling violations of section
2905.32 of the Revised Code, and the time within which such
basic training shall be completed following appointment on other

than a permanent basis;

(6) Categories or classifications of advanced in-service
training programs for peace officers, including programs in the
handling of the offense of domestic violence, other types of
domestic violence-related offenses and incidents, and protection
orders and consent agreements issued or approved under section
2919.26 or 3113.31 of the Revised Code, in crisis intervention,
and in the handling of missing children and child abuse and
neglect cases, and in handling violations of section 2905.32 of
the Revised Code, and minimum courses of study and attendance

requirements with respect to such categories or classifications;

(7) Permitting persons, who are employed as members of a
campus police department appointed under section 1713.50 of the
Revised Code; who are employed as police officers by a qualified
nonprofit corporation police department pursuant to section
1702.80 of the Revised Code; who are appointed and commissioned
as bank, savings and loan association, savings bank, credit
union, or association of banks, savings and loan associations,
savings banks, or credit unions police officers, as railroad
police officers, or as hospital police officers pursuant to
sections 4973.17 to 4973.22 of the Revised Code; or who are
appointed and commissioned as amusement park police officers
pursuant to section 4973.17 of the Revised Code, to attend
approved peace officer training schools, including the Ohio

peace officer training academy, and to receive certificates of
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satisfactory completion of basic training programs, if the
private college or university that established the campus police
department; qualified nonprofit corporation police department;
bank, savings and loan association, savings bank, credit union,
or associlation of banks, savings and loan associations, savings
banks, or credit unions; railroad company; hospital; or
amusement park sponsoring the police officers pays the entire
cost of the training and certification and if trainee vacancies

are available;

(8) Permitting undercover drug agents to attend approved
peace officer training schools, other than the Ohio peace
officer training academy, and to receive certificates of
satisfactory completion of basic training programs, if, for each
undercover drug agent, the county, township, or municipal
corporation that employs that undercover drug agent pays the

entire cost of the training and certification;

(9) (a) The requirements for basic training programs for
bailiffs and deputy bailiffs of courts of record of this state
and for criminal investigators employed by the state public
defender that those persons shall complete before they may carry

a firearm while on duty;

(b) The requirements for any training received by a
bailiff or deputy bailiff of a court of record of this state or
by a criminal investigator employed by the state public defender
prior to June 6, 1986, that is to be considered equivalent to

the training described in division (A) (9) (a) of this section.

(10) Establishing minimum qualifications and requirements

for certification for dogs utilized by law enforcement agencies;

(11) Establishing minimum requirements for certification
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of persons who are employed as correction officers in a full-
service jail, five-day facility, or eight-hour holding facility

or who provide correction services in such a jail or facility;

(12) Establishing requirements for the training of agents
of a county humane society under section 1717.06 of the Revised
Code, including, without limitation, a requirement that the
agents receive instruction on traditional animal husbandry
methods and training techniques, including customary owner-

performed practices;

(13) Permitting tactical medical professionals to attend
approved peace officer training schools, including the Ohio
peace officer training academy, to receive training of the type
described in division (A) (14) of this section and to receive
certificates of satisfactory completion of training programs

described in that division;

(14) The requirements for training programs that tactical
medical professionals shall complete to qualify them to carry
firearms while on duty under section 109.771 of the Revised
Code, which requirements shall include at least the firearms
training specified in division (A) of section 109.748 of the

Revised Code;

(15) Establishing reguirements for the training of dog

wardens and deputies for the purposes of division (E) of section

955.12 of the Revised Code that include fortyv-two hours of

initial training and ten hours of continuing education within a

time period established by the commission.

(B) The commission shall appoint an executive director,
with the approval of the attorney general, who shall hold office

during the pleasure of the commission. The executive director
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shall perform such duties assigned by the commission. The
executive director shall receive a salary fixed pursuant to
Chapter 124. of the Revised Code and reimbursement for expenses
within the amounts available by appropriation. The executive
director may appoint officers, employees, agents, and
consultants as the executive director considers necessary,
prescribe their duties, and provide for reimbursement of their
expenses within the amounts available for reimbursement by

appropriation and with the approval of the commission.
(C) The commission may do all of the following:

(1) Recommend studies, surveys, and reports to be made by
the executive director regarding the carrying out of the
objectives and purposes of sections 109.71 to 109.77 of the

Revised Code;

(2) Visit and inspect any peace officer training school
that has been approved by the executive director or for which

application for approval has been made;

(3) Make recommendations, from time to time, to the
executive director, the attorney general, and the general
assembly regarding the carrying out of the purposes of sections

109.71 to 109.77 of the Revised Code;

(4) Report to the attorney general from time to time, and
to the governor and the general assembly at least annually,

concerning the activities of the commission;

(5) Establish fees for the services the commission offers
under sections 109.71 to 109.79 of the Revised Code, including,
but not limited to, fees for training, certification, and

testing;

(6) Perform such other acts as are necessary or
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appropriate to carry out the powers and duties of the commission

as set forth in sections 109.71 to 109.77 of the Revised Code.

(D) In establishing the requirements, under division (A)
(12) of this section, the commission may consider any portions
of the curriculum for instruction on the topic of animal
husbandry practices, if any, of the Ohio state university
college of veterinary medicine. No person or entity that fails
to provide instruction on traditional animal husbandry methods
and training techniques, including customary owner-performed
practices, shall qualify to train a humane agent for appointment

under section 1717.06 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 715.23. Except as otherwise provided in section
955-221-955.02 of the Revised Code regarding dogs, a municipal
corporation may regulate, restrain, or prohibit the running at
large, within the municipal corporation, of cattle, horses,
swine, sheep, goats, geese, chickens, or other fowl or animals,
impound and hold the fowl or animals, and, on notice to the
owners, authorize the sale of the fowl or animals for the
penalty imposed by any ordinance, and the cost and expenses of

the proceedings.
Sec. 901.80. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Agricultural production" has the same meaning as in

section 929.01 of the Revised Code.

(2) "Agritourism" means an agriculturally related
educational, entertainment, historical, cultural, or
recreational activity, including you-pick operations or farm
markets, conducted on a farm that allows or invites members of
the general public to observe, participate in, or enjoy that

activity.

Page 7

167
168

169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177

178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186

187

188
189

190
191
192
193
194
195



H. B. No. 37
As Introduced

(3) "Agritourism provider" means a person who owns,
operates, provides, or sponsors an agritourism activity or an
employee of such a person who engages in or provides agritourism

activities whether or not for a fee.

(4) "Farm" means land that is composed of tracts, lots, or
parcels totaling not less than ten acres devoted to agricultural
production or totaling less than ten acres devoted to
agricultural production if the land produces an average yearly
gross income of at least twenty-five hundred dollars from

agricultural production.

(5) "Participant" means an individual, other than an
agritourism provider, who observes or participates in an

agritourism activity.

(6) "Risk inherent in an agritourism activity" means a
danger or condition that is an integral part of an agritourism

activity, including all of the following:
(a) The surface and subsurface conditions of land;

(b) The behavior or actions of wild animals not kept by or

under the control of an agritourism provider;

(c) The behavior or actions of domestic animals other than
vicious or dangerous dogs as defined in section 955-3434-955.21 of

the Revised Code;

(d) The ordinary dangers associated with structures or

equipment ordinarily used in farming or ranching operations;

(e) The possibility of contracting illness resulting from
physical contact with animals, animal feed, animal waste, or

surfaces contaminated by animal waste;

(f) The possibility that a participant may act in a
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negligent manner, including by failing to follow instructions 224
given by the agritourism provider or by failing to exercise 225
reasonable caution while engaging in the agritourism activity 226
that may contribute to injury to that participant or another 227
participant. 228

(B) In a civil action, an agritourism provider is immune 229
from liability for any harm a participant sustains during an 230
agritourism activity if the participant is harmed as a result of 231
a risk inherent in an agritourism activity. Nothing in this 232
section requires an agritourism provider to eliminate risks 233
inherent in agritourism activities. 234

(C) An agritourism provider is not immune from civil 235
liability for harm sustained by a participant if any of the 236
following applies: 237

(1) The agritourism provider acts with a willful or wanton 238
disregard for the safety of the participant and proximately 239
causes harm to the participant. 240

(2) The agritourism provider purposefully causes harm to 241
the participant. 242

(3) The agritourism provider's actions or inactions 243
constitute criminal conduct and cause harm to the participant. 244

(4) The agritourism provider fails to post and maintain 245
signs as required by division (D) of this section. 246

(5) The agritourism provider has actual knowledge or 247
should have actual knowledge of an existing dangerous condition 248
on the land or regarding facilities or equipment on the land 249
that is not an inherent risk and does not make the dangerous 250
condition known to the participant, and the dangerous condition 251

proximately causes injury or damage to or the death of the 252
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participant. 253

(D) An agritourism provider shall post and maintain signs 254
that contain the warning notice specified in this division. The 255
provider shall place a sign in a clearly visible location at or 256
near each entrance to the agritourism location or at the site of 257
each agritourism activity. The warning notice shall consist of a 258
sign in black letters with each letter to be a minimum of one 259
inch in height. The signs shall contain the following notice of 260
warning: "WARNING: Under Ohio law, there is no liability for an 261
injury to or death of a participant in an agritourism activity 262
conducted at this agritourism location if that injury or death 263
results from the inherent risks of that agritourism activity. 264
Inherent risks of agritourism activities include, but are not 265
limited to, the risk of injury inherent to land, equipment, and 266
animals as well as the potential for you as a participant to act 267
in a negligent manner that may contribute to your injury or 268
death. You are assuming the risk of participating in this 269
agritourism activity." 270

Sec. 955.01. (A) (1) Except as otherwise provided in this 271
section or in sections 955.011, 955.012, and 955.16 of the 272
Revised Code, every person who owns, keeps, or harbors a dog 273
more than three months of age shall file, on or after the first 274
day of the—apptiecakte—December, but before the thirty-first day 275
of +he—apptieakte—January, in the office of the county auditor 276
of the county in which the dog is kept or harbored, an 277
application for registration for a period of one year or three 278
years or an application for a permanent registration. The board 279
of county commissioners, by resolution, may extend the period 280
for filing the application. The apprieatiem—applicant shall 281
state the age, sex, color, character of hair, whether short or 282

long, and breed, if known, of the dog and the name and address 283
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of the owner of the dog_on the application. A-Along with the

application, the applicant shall submit a registration fee of

two dollars for each year of registration for a one-year or
three-year registration or twenty dollars for a permanent
registration for each dog—shall——acecompany—the appltication.
However, the fee may exceed that amount if a greater fee has
been established under division (A) (2) of this section or under

section 955.14 of the Revised Code.

(2) A board of county commissioners may establish a
registration fee higher than the one provided for in division
(A) (1) of this section for degs—a dog more than nine months of
age that kawe—has not been spayed or neutered, except that the
higher registration fee permitted by this division skadd—does
not apply if a—the person registering a—the dog furnishes any of
the following with the application—either—a—:

(a) A certificate from a licensed veterinarian verifying
that the dog should not be spayed or neutered because of its age

or medical condition—er—;

(b) A certificate from a licensed veterinarian verifying

that the dog should not be spaved or neutered because the dog is

used or intended for use for show or breeding purposes—er—a—;

(c) A certificate from the owner of the dog declaring that
the owner holds a valid hunting license issued by the division
of wildlife of the department of natural resources and that the

dog 1s used or intended for use for hunting purposes.

(3) If the board establishes swekh—a fee_under division (A)

(2) of this section, the application for registration shall

state whether the dog is spayed or neutered, and whether a

licensed veterinarian has certified that the dog should not be
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spayed or neutered or the owner has stated that the dog is used 313
or intended to be used for hunting purposes. The board may 314
require a person who is registering a spayed or neutered dog to 315
furnish with the application a certificate from a licensed 316
veterinarian verifying that the dog is spayed or neutered. 317
(4) No person shall furnish a certificate under this 318
division that the person knows to be false. 319
(B) If the application for registration is not filed and 320

the registration fee paid, on or before the thirty-first day of 321
the applicable January of each year or, if the board of county 322
commissioners by resolution has extended the date to a date 323
later than the thirty-first day of January, the date established 324
by the board, the auditor shall assess a penalty in an amount 325
equal to the registration fee for one year upon the owner, 326
keeper, or harborer, which shall be paid with the registration 327
fee. 328
(C) An animal shelter that keeps or harbors a dog more 329

than three months of age is exempt from paying any fees imposed 330
under division (A) or (B) of this section if it is a nonprofit 331
organization that is exempt from federal income taxation under 332
subsection 501 (a) and described in subsection 501 (c) (3) of the 333
"Internal Revenue Code of 1986," 100 Stat. 2085, 26 U.S.C. 1. 334
(D) Whoever violates division (A) (4) of this section is 335
guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree. 336
Sec. 955.02. As—used—in—this—chapter;—dog—kennet"—ox 337
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(A) For the purposes of this section, ordinances or

resolutions to control dogs include, but are not limited to,

ordinances or resolutions concerned with the ownership, keeping,

or harboring of dogs, the restraint of dogs, dogs as public

nuisances, and dogs as a threat to public health, safety, and

welfare. However, such ordinances or resolutions as permitted in

division (B) of this section shall not prohibit the use of any

dog which is lawfully engaged in hunting or training for the

purpose of hunting while accompanied by a licensed hunter. A dog

at all other times and in all other respects is subject to the

ordinances or resolutions permitted by this section, unless

actually in the field and engaged in hunting or in legitimate

training for such purpose.

(B) (1) A board of county commissioners may adopt and

enforce resolutions to control dogs within the unincorporated

areas of the county that are not otherwise in conflict with any

other provision of the Revised Code.

(2) A board of township trustees may adopt and enforce

resolutions to control dogs within the township that are not

otherwise in conflict with any other provision of the Revised

Code, if the township is located in a county where the board of

county commissioners has not adopted resolutions to control dogs

within the unincorporated areas of the county under this

section. In the event that the board of county commissioners

adopts resolutions to control dogs in the county after a board

of township trustees has adopted resolutions to control dogs

within the township, the resolutions adopted by the county board

of commissioners prevail over the resolutions adopted by the
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board of township trustees. 372

(3) A municipal corporation may adopt and enforce 373
ordinances to control dogs within the municipal corporation that 374
are not otherwise in conflict with any other provision of the 375
Revised Code. 376

(C) No person shall violate any resolution or ordinance 377
adopted under this section. 378

(D) Whoever violates division (C) of this section is 379
guilty of a minor misdemeanor. Fach day of continued violation 380
constitutes a separate offense. The mayor or clerk of the 381
municipal or county court shall distribute fines levied and 382
collected for violations of that division in accordance with 383
section 733.40, division (F) of section 1901.31, or division (C) 384
of section 1907.20 of the Revised Code to the treasury of the 385
county, township, or municipal corporation whose resolution or 386
ordinance was violated. 387

Sec. 955.04. (A) As used in this chapter, "dog kennel" or 388
"kennel" means an establishment that keeps, houses, and 389
maintains adult dogs, as defined in section 956.01 of the 390
Revised Code, for the purpose of breeding the dogs for a fee or 391
other consideration received through a sale, exchange, or lease 392
and that is not a high volume breeder licensed under Chapter 393
956. of the Revised Code. 394

(B) Every owner of a dog kennel ef¥—degs—shall, in like 395
manner as provided in section 955.01 of the Revised Code, make 396
application for the registration of such kennel, and pay to the 397
county auditor a registration fee of ten dollars for each such 398
kennel, unless a greater fee has been established under section 399

955.14 of the Revised Code. If swekh—the application is not filed 400
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and the fee paid, on or before the thirty-first day of January

of each year, the auditor shall assess a penalty in an amount

equal to the registration fee upon the owner of such kennel. The

payment of suweh—the kennel registration fee shall-—entitt
entitles the licensee to not more than five tags, to bear
consecutive numbers and to be issued in like manner and have
like effect when worn by any dog owned in good faith by such
licensee as the tags provided for in section 955.08 of the
additional

Revised Code. Upon application to the county auditor,

tags, 1in excess of the five tags, may be issued upon payment of

an additional fee of one dollar per tag.

Sec. 955.10. (A) No owner of a dog, except a dog
constantly confined to a dog kennel registered under this
chapter or eme—licensed under Chapter 956. of the Revised Code,

shall fail to require the dog to wear, at all times, a valid tag
issued in connection with a certificate of registration. A dog
found not wearing at any time a valid tag sheti—be—is prima-
facie evidence of lack of registration and shall subject any dog
found not wearing such a tag to impounding, sale, or

destruction.

(B) Whoever violates division (A) of this section is

guilty of a minor misdemeanor.

Sec. 955.11. A rAsuvsed—in+thissection—
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or harborer of a dog more than three

(A) No owner, keeper,

months of age or an owner of a dog kennel shall fail to file the

registration application reguired by section 955.01 of the

Revised Code. No such owner, keeper, harborer, or dog kennel

owner shall fail to pay the associated legal fee.

(B) Whoever violates division (A) of this section shall be

fined not less than twenty-five dollars or more than one hundred

dollars on a first offense, and on each subsequent offense, not

less than seventy-five dollars or more than two hundred fifty

dollars and may be imprisoned for not more than thirty days.

Sec. 955.12. (A) Except as provided in section 955.121 of

Revised Code, a board of county commissioners shall appoint or
employ a county dog warden and deputies in such number, for such
periods of time, and at such compensation as the board considers
necessary to enforce sections 955.01 to 955.27—anmd, 955.50 to

8955-53-955.54, and 955.60 of the Revised Code.
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The warden and deputies shall give bond in a sum not less
than five hundred dollars and not more than two thousand
dollars, as set by the board, conditioned for the faithful
performance of their duties. The bond or bonds may, in the
discretion of the board, be individual or blanket bonds. The
bonds shall be filed with the county auditor of their respective

counties.

(B) The warden and deputies shall make a record of all
dogs owned, kept, and harbored in their respective counties.
They shall patrol their respective counties and seize and
impound on sight all dogs found running at large and all dogs
more than three months of age found not wearing a wvalid
registration tag, except any dog that wears a valid registration
tag and is: on the premises of its owner, keeper, or harborer,
under the reasonable control of its owner or some other person,
hunting with its owner or its handler at a field trial, kept
constantly confined in a dog kennel registered under this
chapter or one licensed under Chapter 956. of the Revised Code,
or acquired by, and confined on the premises of, an institution
or organization of the type described in section 955.16 of the
Revised Code. A dog that wears a valid registration tag may be
seized on the premises of its owner, keeper, or harborer and

impounded only in the event of a natural disaster.

(C) If a dog warden has reason to believe that a dog is
being treated inhumanely on the premises of its owner, keeper,
or harborer, the warden shall apply to the court of common pleas
for the county in which the premises are located for an order to
enter the premises, and if necessary, seize the dog. If the
court finds probable cause to believe that the dog is being

treated inhumanely, it shall issue such an order.
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(D) The warden and deputies shall also make weekly 573
reports, in writing, to the board in their respective counties 574
of all dogs seized, impounded, redeemed, and destroyed. 575

(E) The wardens and deputies skhalt—have the same police 576
powers, including the authority to make arrests, as are 577
conferred upon sheriffs and police officers in the performance 578
of their duties as prescribed by sections 955.01 to 955.27—anmd 579
2955.50 to 855-53-955.54, and 955.60 of the Revised Code. They 580
shatt—also have power to summon the assistance of bystanders in 581
performing their duties and may serve writs and other legal 582
processes issued by any court in their respective counties with 583
reference to enforcing those sections. County auditors may 584
deputize the wardens or deputies to issue dog licenses as 585
provided in sections 955.01 and 955.14 of the Revised Code. 586

(F) Whenever any person files an affidavit in a court of 587
competent jurisdiction that there is a dog running at large that 588
is not kept constantly confined either in a dog kennel 589
registered under this chapter or one licensed under Chapter 956. 590
of the Revised Code or on the premises of an institution or 591
organization of the type described in section 955.16 of the 592
Revised Code or that a dog is kept or harbored in the warden's 593
jurisdiction without being registered as required by law, the 594
court shall immediately order the warden to seize and impound 595
the dog. Thereupon the warden shall immediately seize and 596
impound the dog complained of. The warden shall give immediate 597
notice by certified mail to the owner, keeper, or harborer of 598
the dog seized and impounded by the warden, if the owner, 599
keeper, or harborer can be determined from the current year's 600
registration list maintained by the warden and the county 601
auditor of the county where the dog is registered, that the dog 602

has been impounded and that, unless the dog is redeemed within 603
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fourteen days of the date of the notice, it may thereafter be
sold or destroyed according to law. If the owner, keeper, or
harborer cannot be determined from the current year's
registration list maintained by the warden and the county
auditor of the county where the dog is registered, the officer
shall post a notice in the pound or animal shelter both
describing the dog and place where seized and advising the
unknown owner that, unless the dog is redeemed within three

days, it may thereafter be sold or destroyed according to law.

Sec. 955.13. (A) Upon the transfer of ownership of any

dog, the seller of the dog shall give the buyer a transfer of

ownership certificate signed by the seller. The seller shall

include on the certificate the registration number of the dog,

the name of the seller, and a brief description of the dog. The

county auditor shall provide blank forms of the certificate upon

request. The county auditor shall record a transfer of ownership

upon presentation of a transfer of ownership certificate that is

signed by the former owner of a dog and that is accompanied by a

fee of five dollars.

(B) Prior to the transfer of ownership or possession of a

dog, upon the buver's or other transferee's request, the seller

or other transferor of the dog shall give to the person a

written notice relative to the behavior and propensities of the

dog.

(C) Not later than ten days after the transfer of

ownership or possession of any dog, if the seller or other

transferor of the dog has knowledge that the dog is a dangerous

dog, the seller or other transferor shall give to the buyer or

other transferee, the board of health of the health district in

which the buver or other transferee resides, and the dog warden
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of the county in which the buyer or other transferee resides a

completed copy of a written form on which the seller shall

furnish the following information:

(1) The name and address of the buver or other transferee

of the dog;

(2) The age, sex, color, breed, and current registration

number of the dog.

In addition, the seller shall answer the following

guestions that shall be specifically stated on the form as

follows:

"Has the dog ever chased or attempted to attack or bite a

person? If ves, describe the incident(s) in which the behavior

occurred."

"Has the dog ever bitten a person? If ves, describe the

incident(s) in which the behavior occurred."

"Has the dog ever seriously injured or killed a person? If

ves, describe the incident(s) in which the behavior occurred."

The dog warden of the county in which the seller resides

shall furnish the form to the seller at no cost.

(D) No seller or other transferor of a dog shall fail to

comply with the applicable requirements of this section.

(E) Whoever violates division (D) of this section is

guilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth degree on a first offense

and a misdemeanor of the third degree on each subseguent

offense.

Sec. 955.16. (A) Dogs that have been seized by the county

dog warden and impounded shall be kept, housed, and fed for
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three days for the purpose of redemption, as provided by section

955.18 of the Revised Code, unless any of the following applies:

(1) Immediate humane destruction of the dog is necessary
because of obvious disease or injury. If the diseased or injured
dog is registered, as determined from the current year's
registration list maintained by the warden and the county
auditor of the county where the dog is registered, the necessity
of destroying the dog shall be certified by a licensed
veterinarian or a registered veterinary technician. If the dog
is not registered, the decision to destroy it shall be made by

the warden.

(2) The dog is currently registered on the registration
list maintained by the warden and the auditor of the county
where the dog is registered and the attempts to notify the
owner, keeper, or harborer under section 955.12 of the Revised
Code have failed, in which case the dog shall be kept, housed,

and fed for fourteen days for the purpose of redemption.

(3) The warden has contacted the owner, keeper, or
harborer under section 955.12 of the Revised Code, and the
owner, keeper, or harborer has requested that the dog remain in
the pound or animal shelter until the owner, harborer, or keeper
redeems the dog. The time for such redemption shall be not more
than forty-eight hours following the end of the appropriate

redemption period.

At any time after such periods of redemption, any dog not
redeemed shall be donated to any nonprofit special agency that
is engaged in the training of any type of assistance dogs and
that requests that the dog be donated to it. Any dog not
redeemed that is not requested by such an agency may be sold,

except that no dog sold to a person other than a nonprofit
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teaching or research institution or organization of the type
described in division (B) of this section shall be discharged
from the pound or animal shelter until the animal has been

registered and furnished with a valid registration tag.

(B) Any dog that is not redeemed within the applicable
period as specified in this section or section 955.12 of the
Revised Code from the time notice is mailed to its owner,
keeper, or harborer or is posted at the pound or animal shelter,
as required by section 955.12 of the Revised Code, and that is
not required to be donated to a nonprofit special agency engaged
in the training of any type of assistance dogs may, upon payment
to the dog warden or poundkeeper of the sum of three dollars, be
sold to any nonprofit Ohio institution or organization that is
certified by the director of health as being engaged in teaching
or research concerning the prevention and treatment of diseases
of human beings or animals. Any dog that is donated to a
nonprofit special agency engaged in the training of any type of
assistance dogs in accordance with division (A) of this section
and any dog that is sold to any nonprofit teaching or research
institution or organization shall be discharged from the pound
or animal shelter without registration and may be kept by the
agency or by the institution or organization without
registration so long as the dog is being trained, or is being

used for teaching and research purposes.

Any institution or organization certified by the director
that obtains dogs for teaching and research purposes pursuant to
this section shall, at all reasonable times, make the dogs
available for inspection by agents of the Ohio humane society,
appointed pursuant to section 1717.04 of the Revised Code, and
agents of county humane societies, appointed pursuant to section

1717.06 of the Revised Code, in order that the agents may
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prevent the perpetration of any act of cruelty, as defined in

section 1717.01 of the Revised Code, to the dogs.

(C) Any dog that the dog warden or poundkeeper is unable
to dispose of, in the manner provided by this section and
section 955.18 of the Revised Code, may be humanely destroyed,
except that no dog shall be destroyed until twenty-four hours
after it has been offered to a nonprofit teaching or research
institution or organization, as provided in this section, that

has made a request for dogs to the dog warden or poundkeeper.

(D) An owner of a dog that is wearing a valid registration
tag who presents the dog to the dog warden or poundkeeper may
specify in writing that the dog shall not be offered to a
nonprofit teaching or research institution or organization, as

provided in this section.

(E) A record of all dogs impounded, the disposition of the
same, the owner's name and address, if known, and a statement of
costs assessed against the dogs shall be kept by the
poundkeeper, and the poundkeeper shall furnish a transcript

thereof to the county treasurer quarterly.

A record of all dogs received and the source that supplied
them shall be kept, for a period of three years from the date of
acquiring the dogs, by all institutions or organizations engaged
in teaching or research concerning the prevention and treatment

of diseases of human beings or animals.

(F) No person shall destroy any dog by the use of a high
altitude decompression chamber or by any method other than a
method that immediately and painlessly renders the dog initially

unconscious and subsequently dead.

(G) Whoever violates division (F) of this section is
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guilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth degree.

Sec. 955.21. Ne—ewreri—keeper—erharberereof adeg—mer
+ 1 n + 1 mant £ o eV £ Ao 1 o | = 11 £ 21
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fee—therefor—- As used in this chapter:

LAl " 4
(A) (1) Dangerous dog" means a dog to which any of the

following apply:

(a) The dog has caused injury to any person.

(b) The dog has caused injury, serious inijury, or death to

another dog.

(c) The dog has been the subject of three or more

violations of division (B) of section 955.22 of the Revised Code

and the owner, keeper, or harborer of the dog has plead gquilty

to or been convicted of three or more of those violations.

(2) "Dangerous dog" does not include any of the following:

(a) A police dog that has caused injury, serious injury,

or death to any person or dog while the police dog is being used

to assist one or more law enforcement officers in the

performance of their official duties;

(b) A dog that has caused injury to any person while a

person was committing or attempting to commit a trespass or

other criminal offense on the property of the owner, keeper, or

harborer of the dog;

(c) A dog that is kept or harbored on a farm that has

injured, seriously injured, or killed another dog that has

either come onto the property of the farm or disrupted the

duties of the farm dog.
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(B) "Death" includes death of a dog by euthanasia when 779
recommended by a veterinarian, registered veterinary technician, 780
or county dog warden after evaluation of a dog's injuries. 781

(C) "Menacing fashion" means that a dog would cause any 782
person being chased or approached to reasonably believe that the 783
dog will cause physical injury to that person. 784

(D) (1) "Nuisance dog" means a dog that, while off the 785
premises of its owner, keeper, or harborer, has chased or 786
approached a person in either a menacing fashion or an apparent 787
attitude of attack or has attempted to bite or otherwise 788
endanger any person. 789

(2) "Nuisance dog" does not include a police dog that 790
while being used to assist one or more law enforcement officers 791
in the performance of their official duties has chased or 792
approached a person in either a menacing fashion or an apparent 793
attitude of attack or has attempted to bite or otherwise 794
endanger any person. 795

(B) "Police dog" means a dog that has been trained, and 796
may be used, to assist one or more law enforcement officers in 797
the performance of their official duties. 798

(F) "Serious injury" means any of the following: 799

(1) Anv physical harm that carries a substantial risk of 800
death; 801

(2) Any physical harm that involves a permanent 802
incapacity, whether partial or total, or a temporary, 803
substantial incapacity; 804

(3) Any physical harm that involves a permanent 805

disfigurement or a temporary, serious disfigurement; 806
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(4) Any physical harm that involves acute pain of a

duration that results in substantial suffering or any degree of

prolonged or intractable pain.

(G) (1) "Vicious dog" means a dog that has done any of the

following:

(a) Caused serious injury or death to any person;

(b) Caused inijury to any person after being designated a

dangerous dog in accordance with section 955.222 of the Revised

Code;

(c) Caused serious injury or death to another dog after

being designated a dangerous dog in accordance with section

955.222 of the Revised Code.

(2) "Vicious dog" does not include any of the following:

(a) A police dog that has caused injury, serious injury,

or death to any person or dog while the police dog is being used

to assist one or more law enforcement officers in the

performance of their official duties;

(b) A dog that has injured, seriously injured, or killed

any person or dog while a person was committing or attempting to

commit a trespass or other criminal offense on the property of

the owner, keeper, or harborer of the dog;

(c) A dog that is kept or harbored on a farm that has

injured, seriously injured, or killed another dog that has

either come onto the property of the farm or disrupted the

duties of the farm dog.

Sec. 955.22. (A) ; 3 : - n n
has—the—samemeaning—as—insectieon—055-11+of +the Revised Code—
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“B>—No owner, keeper, or harborer of any female dog shall
permit +£—the dog to go beyond the premises of the owner,
keeper, or harborer at any time the dog is in heat unless the

dog is properly in leash.

+€r—(B) Except when a dog is lawfully engaged in hunting
and accompanied by the owner, keeper, harborer, or handler of
the dog, no owner, keeper, or harborer of any dog shall fail at

any time to do either of the following:

(1) Keep the dog physically confined or restrained upon
the premises of the owner, keeper, or harborer by a leash,
tether, adequate fence, supervision, or secure enclosure to

prevent escape;

(2) Keep the dog under the reasonable control of some

person.
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(B)

In a prosecution for a violation of division

()

995

this section in connection with a dog that has caused injury or

996

any of the

serious injury to or the death of a person or dog,

997

as

following may be asserted as an affirmative defense,

998

licable

a

999

The dog or the dog's offspring was willfully teased,

1)

1000

or abused by a person.

tormented,

1001

The dog was coming to the aid or defense of a person

(2)

1002

who was not engaged in illegal or criminal activity and who was

1003

not using the dog as a means of carrvying out such activity.
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(3) The dog was responding to its own pain or injury. 1004

(4) The person toward whom the dog's behavior was directed 1005
was intervening between two or more animals engaged in 1006
aggressive behavior or fighting. 1007

(5) The dog caused injury or serious injury to a person or 1008
killed a person while the person was committing or attempting to 1009
commit a trespass or other criminal offense on the property of 1010
the owner, keeper, or harborer of the dog. 1011

(D) (1) Unless division (G) of this section applies, 1012
whoever violates division (B) of this section that involves a 1013
dog that has not been designated a nuisance, dangerous, oOr 1014
vicious dog or whoever violates division (A) of this section 1015
shall be fined not less than twenty-five dollars or more than 1016
one hundred dollars on a first offense. On each subsequent 1017
offense, the offender shall be fined not less than seventy-five 1018
dollars or more than two hundred fifty dollars and may be 1019
imprisoned for not more than thirty days. 1020

(2) In addition to the penalties prescribed in division 1021
(D) (1) of this section, the court may order the offender to 1022
personally supervise the dog that the offender owns, keeps, or 1023
harbors, to require that dog to complete dog obedience training, 1024
or to do both. 1025

(E) (1) Unless division (G) of this section applies, 1026
whoever violates division (B) of this section that involves a 1027
dog that has been designated a nuisance dog is guilty of a minor 1028
misdemeanor on the first offense and a misdemeanor of the fourth 1029
degree on each subsequent offense involving the same dog. Upon a 1030
third offense of division (B) of this section involving the same 1031

dog that has been designated a nuisance dog, the court shall 1032
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require the offender to register the dog as a dangerous dodg.

(2) In addition to the penalties prescribed in division

(E) (1) of this section, the court may order the offender to

personally supervise the nuisance dog that the offender owns,

keeps, or harbors, to require that dog to complete dog obedience

training, or to do both.

(F) Unless division (G) of this section applies, whoever

violates division (B) of this section that involves a dog that

has been designated a dangerous or vicious dog is guilty of a

misdemeanor of the fourth degree on a first offense and a

misdemeanor of the third degree on each subseguent offense.

Additionally, the court shall do one of the following:

(1) Order the offender to personally supervise the

dangerous or vicious dog that the offender owns, keeps, or

harbors, require that dog to complete dog obedience training, or

do both and order the offender to obtain liability insurance

pursuant to division (B) of section 955.223 of the Revised Code.

(2) Order the dangerous or vicious dog to be humanely

destroyved by a licensed veterinarian, the county dog warden, or

the county humane society at the owner's expense.

(G) Whoever violates division (B) of this section

involving any dog that causes injury, serious injury, or death

to a person or dog is quilty of one of the following, as

applicable:

(1) A misdemeanor of the first degree if the dog causes

injury, other than serious injury, to a person or causes injury,

serious injury, or death to another dog. Additionally, if the

dog causes injury to a person or injury or serious injury to

another dog, the court may order that the dog be humanely
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destroved by a licensed veterinarian, the county dog warden, or 1062
the county humane society at the owner's expense. If the dog 1063
kills another dog, the court shall order that the dog be 1064
humanely destroyed in such a manner. 1065

(2) A felony of the fifth degree if the dog kills or 1066
causes serious injury to a person. Additionally, if the dog 1067
kills a person, the court shall order that the dog be humanely 1068
destroved by a licensed veterinarian, the county dog warden, or 1069
the county humane society at the owner's expense. If the dog 1070
causes serious inijury to a person, the court may order that the 1071
dodg be humanely destroyed in such a manner. 1072

(3) A felony of the fifth degree if the dog causes either 1073
injury, other than serious injury, to a person or causes injury, 1074
serious injury, or death to another dog and the offender has 1075
previously violated this section and been sentenced under 1076
division (G) (1) or (2) of this section. Additionally, if the dog 1077
causes injury to a person or injury or serious injury to another 1078
dog, the court may order that the dog be humanely destroyed by a 1079
licensed veterinarian, the county dog warden, or the county 1080
humane society at the owner's expense. If the dog kills another 1081
dog, the court shall order that the dog be humanely destroyed in 1082
such a manner. 1083

(4) A felony of the fourth degree if the dog kills or 1084
causes serious inijury to a person and the offender has 1085
previously violated this section and been sentenced under 1086
division (G) (1), (2), or (3) of this section. Additionally, if 1087
the dog kills a person, the court shall order that the dog be 1088
humanely destroyed by a licensed veterinarian, the county dog 1089
warden, or the county humane society at the owner's expense. If 1090

the dog causes serious injury to a person, the court may order 1091




H. B. No. 37
As Introduced

that the dog be humanely destroyved in such a manner.

(H) If a violation of division (B) of this section

involves a dog that has been designated a dangerous dog or

involves a person that is subiject to sentencing under divisions

(G) (1) to (4) of this section, the dog that is the subject of

the violation shall be confined or restrained in accordance with

division (A) of section 955.223 of the Revised Code or at the

county dog pound at the owner's expense until the court makes a

final determination and during the pendency of any appeal of the

violation.

(I) If the court, when authorized to do so, does not order

a dog to be humanely destroved under division (G) of this

section, the court shall issue an order that specifies that

division (C) of section 955.13 and sections 955.223, 955.224,

955.225, and 955.54 of the Revised Code apply with respect to

the dog and the owner, keeper, or harborer of the dog as if the

dog were a dangerous dog.
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If a dog is confined at the county dog pound pursuant

(A)

1146

the

or 955.225 of the Revised Code,

955.222,

to section 955.22,

1147

county dog warden shall give written notice of the confinement

1148

If the county dog warden is unable to

to the owner of the dog.

1149

the county dog warden

give the notice to the owner of the dog,

1150

shall post the notice on the door of the residence of the owner
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of the dog or in another conspicuous place on the premises at

which the dog was seized. The notice shall include a statement

that a security in the amount of one hundred dollars is due to

the county dog warden within ten days. The purpose of the

security is to secure payment of all reasonable expenses,

including medical care and boarding of the dog for sixty days,

expected to be incurred by the county dog pound in caring for

the dog during the pendency of court proceedings. The county dog

warden may draw from the security any actual costs incurred in

caring for the dog.

(B) If the person ordered to post security under division

(A) of this section does not do so within ten days of the

confinement of the animal, the dog is forfeited, and the county

dog warden may determine the disposition of the dog unless the

court issues an order that specifies otherwise.

(C) Not more than ten days after the court makes a final

determination under section 955.22, 955.222, or 955.225 of the

Revised Code, the county dog warden shall provide the owner of

the dog with the actual cost of the confinement of the dog. If

the county dog warden finds that the security provided under

division (A) of this section is less than the actual cost of

confinement of the dog, the owner shall remit the difference

between the security provided and the actual cost to the county

dog warden within thirty days after the court's determination.

If the county dog warden finds that the security provided under

division (A) of this section is greater than that actual cost,

the county dog warden shall remit the difference between the

security provided and the actual cost to the owner within thirty

days after the court's determination.

Sec. 955.222. (A) TFhemunieipal—ecourt—eor—county court—that
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+B)—If a person who is authorized to enforce this chapter
has reasonable cause to believe that a dog in the person's

jurisdiction is a nuisance dog, dangerous dog, or vicious dog,

the person shall notify the owner, keeper, or harborer of that

dog, by certified mail or in person, of both of the following:

(1) That the person has designated the dog a nuisance dog,

dangerous dog, or vicious dog, as applicable;

(2) That the owner, keeper, or harborer of the dog may

request a hearing regarding the designation in accordance with

this section. The notice shall include instructions for filing a

request for a hearing—ian—the—eceounty—in—which—the dog's—owner;

hou_buJ_CJ_ J_COJI_dCO Wlth the court Wlth —llurisdiction

]
KeePrCTET77—0CE

over the location where the alleged incident occurred that gave

rise to the designation that the dog is a nuisance dodg,

dangerous dog, or vicious dog.

Reasonable cause may be supported by one or more notarized

affidavits of a witness describing the incident or incidents in

which the witness saw the dog engage in behavior that warrants

designation of the dog as a nuisance dog, dangerous dog, or

vicious dog.
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SOG7—OE oSO ——aS—aPP T Cao eyt (B) The owner, keeper,

or harborer, not later than ten days after receiving

notification of the designation, may request a hearing regarding
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the determination_in writing. The request feor—a—hearimg—shall>

ia—writing—and—shall be filed with the municipal court or county

th

court that has territorial jurisdiction over the—residernee

the—dogls—eowner;—keeper;—or—harberer alleged incident that gave

rise to the determination that the dog is a nuisance dog,

dangerous dog, or vicious dog. At the hearing, the person who

designated the dog as a nuisance dog, dangerous dog, or vicious
dog has the burden of proving, by clear and convincing evidence,

that the dog is a nuisance dog, dangerous dog, or vicious dog.

The owner, keeper, or harborer of the dog or the person
who designated the dog as a nuisance dog, dangerous dog, or
vicious dog may appeal the court's final determination as in any

other case filed in that court.

+B—A—(C) (1) Subiject to division (C) (2) of this section

and if the owner, keeper, or harborer has requested a hearing

under division (B) of this section, a dog that has been

designated a nuisance, dangerous, or vicious dog shall be

confined at the county dog pound at the owner's expense until

the court makes a final determination and during the pendency of

any appeal of the violation.

(2) The court, upon motion of an owner, keeper, or
harborer or an attorney representing the owner, keeper, or
harborer, may order that the dog designated as a nuisance dog,
dangerous dog, or vicious dog be held in the possession of the
owner, keeper, or harborer until the court makes a final

determination under this section or during the pendency of an

appeal, TS alut/lJl_\_/ablC. Bae++—If the court—wmakes—a—finmat

Aot 3 + o a A 3 += 1 PN £ 1 1
TCTCTIrIira c T Ul ol ol ity clic pTIIacCIICy O dally apptax 1ssues the

order, the dog shall be confined or restrained in accordance

with he—previsiens—ef—division 4B+—(A) of section 85522—
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955.223 of the Revised Code £hat—apply—to—dangerous—dogs—

regardless of whether the dog has been designated as a vicious
dog or a nuisance dog rather than a dangerous dog. The owner,
keeper, or harborer of the dog skhall—is not be—required to
comply with any other requirements established in the Revised
Code that concern a nuisance dog,

dangerous dog, or vicious dogy

until the court makes a final determination and

12 a1
O app LT ICTaioTCy

during the pendency of any appeal.

It is an affirmative defense to the designation of

+E—(D)

a _dog as a nuisance dod,

dangerous dog, or vicious dog if any of

the following apply:

(1) The dog or the dog's offspring was willfully teased,

tormented, or abused by a person.

(2) The dog was coming to the aid or defense of a person

who was not engaged in illegal or criminal activity and who was

not using the dog as a means of carrying out such activity.

(3) The dog was responding to its own pain or injury.

(4) The person toward whom the dog's behavior was directed

was intervening between two or more animals engaged in

aggressive behavior or fighting.

(5) The dog caused injury or serious injury to or death of

a person while the person was committing or attempting to commit

a trespass or other criminal offense on the property of the

owner, keeper, or harborer of the dog.

(E) (1) Tf a dog is finally determined under this section,
or on appeal as described in this section, to be a vicious dog_

and the dog did not kill a person or another dog during the

incident that gave rise to that determination,—divisien—by} £
= o o n QrC . 11 = o ERP no JAnNY + LT £ = P S n QrC . 20 £ + 1
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the court may order the dog to be humanely

destroyed by a licensed veterinarian, the county dog warden, or

the county humane society at the owner's expense.
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(2) If a dog is finally determined under this section, or

on appeal as described in this section, to be a vicious dog and

the dog killed a person or another dog during the incident that

gave rise to that determination, the court shall order the dog

to be humanely destroved by a licensed veterinarian, the county

dog warden, or the county humane society at the owner's expense.

(3) If the court does not order a vicious dog to be

destroyed under division (E) (1) of this section, the court shall

issue an order that specifies that division (C) of section

955.13 and sections 955.223, 955.224, 955.225, and 955.54 of the

Revised Code apply with respect to the dog and to the owner,

keeper, or harborer of the dog as if the dog were a dangerous
dog.
Sec. 955.223. (A) Except when a dangerous dog is lawfully
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engaged in hunting or training for the purpose of hunting and is 1299
accompanied by the owner, keeper, harborer, or handler of the 1300
dog, no owner, keeper, or harborer of a dangerous dog shall fail 1301
to do either of the following: 1302

(1) While the dog is on the premises of the owner, keeper, 1303
or harborer, securely confine it at all times in a locked pen 1304
that has a top, locked fenced vard, or other locked enclosure 1305
that has a top; 1306

(2) While the dog is off the premises of the owner, 1307
keeper, or harborer, keep the dog on a chain-link leash or 1308
tether that is not more than six feet in length and additionally 1309
do at least one of the following: 1310

(a) Keep the dog in a locked pen that has a top, locked 1311
fenced vard, or other locked enclosure that has a top; 1312

(b) Have the leash or tether controlled by a person who is 1313
of suitable age and discretion and station such a person in 1314
close enoudgh proximity to the dog so as to prevent it from 1315
causing inijury to any person; 1316

(c) Securely attach, tie, or affix the leash or tether to 1317
the ground or a stationary object or fixture so that the dog is 1318
adequately restrained; 1319

(d) Muzzle the dog. 1320

(B) No owner, keeper, or harborer of a dangerous dog shall 1321
fail to do any of the following: 1322

(1) Obtain liability insurance with an insurer authorized, 1323
approved, or otherwise eligible to write liability insurance in 1324
this state providing at least one hundred thousand dollars of 1325

coveradge in each occurrence because of damage or bodily injury 1326
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to or death of a person caused by the dangerous dog if so

ordered by a court and provide proof of that liability insurance

upon regquest to any law enforcement officer, county dog warden,

or public health official authorized to enforce this chapter;

(2) Obtain a dangerous dog registration certificate from

the county dog warden pursuant to section 955.224 of the Revised

Code, affix a tag that identifies the dog as a dangerous dog to

the dog's collar, and ensure that the dog wears the collar and

tag at all times;

(3) Notify the county dog warden immediately if any of the

following occurs:

(a) The dog is loose or unconfined.

(b) The dog bites a person unless the dog is on the

property of the owner of the dog and the person who is bitten is

unlawfully trespassing or committing a criminal act within the

boundaries of that property.

(c) The dog attacks another animal while the dog is off

the property of the owner of the dog.

(4) If the dog is sold, given to another person, or dies,

notify the county dog warden within ten days of the sale,

transfer, or death.

(C) Whoever violates division (A) of this section is

guilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth degree on a first offense

and of a misdemeanor of the third degree on each subseguent

offense. Additionally, the court shall do one of the following:

(1) Order the offender to personally supervise the

dangerous dog that the offender owns, keeps, or harbors, regquire

that dog to complete dog obedience training, or to do both and,
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if applicable, order the offender to obtain liability insurance

in the manner described in division (B) (1) of this section;

(2) Order the dangerous dog to be humanely destroved by a

licensed veterinarian, the county dog warden, or the county

humane society at the owner's expense.

(D) Whoever violates division (B) (1) of this section is

guilty of a minor misdemeanor.

(E) Whoever violates division (B) (2) of this section is

gquilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth degree.

(F') Whoever violates division (B) (3) or (4) of this

section is quilty of a minor misdemeanor.

Sec. 955.224. (2) (1) Not later than thirty days after a

dog has been designated a dangerous dog under section 955.222 of

the Revised Code or a person acquires ownership of a dangerous

dog, the owner of the dog shall file an application for a

dangerous dog registration certificate in the office of the

county dog warden of the county in which the owner resides. The

owner shall renew the certificate annually by filing an

application on or after the first day of December, but not later

than the thirty-first day of January each vear.

(2) If an application for a dangerous dog registration

certificate is not filed and the registration fee established in

this section paid by the applicable deadline established in

division (A) (1) of this section, the county dog warden shall

assess a penalty in an amount equal to the dangerous dog

registration fee.

(3) Registration of a dangerous dodg required by this

section is in addition to the registration required by section

955.01 of the Revised Code.
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(B) The county dog warden shall issue a dangerous dog

registration certificate to a person who is the owner of a dog,

who is eighteen vears of age or older, and who provides the

following to the warden:

(1) A fee of fifty dollars for the initial registration

and annual renewal, or, if the initial registration period is

less than twelve months, a fee equal to a prorated amount as

determined by the county dog warden;

(2) The person's address, telephone number, and other

appropriate means for the county dog warden to contact the

person;

(3) With respect to the person and the dog for which the

registration is sought, all of the following:

(a) Either satisfactory evidence of the dog's current

rabies vaccination or a statement from a licensed veterinarian

that a rabies vaccination is medically contraindicated for the

dog;

(b) Either satisfactory evidence of the fact that the dog

has been neutered or spaved or a statement from a licensed

veterinarian that neutering or spaving of the dog is medically

contraindicated;

(c) Satisfactory evidence of the fact that the person has

posted and will continue to post clearly visible signs at the

person's residence warning both minors and adults of the

presence of a dangerous dog on the property;

(d) Satisfactoryv evidence of the fact that the dog has

been permanently identified by means of a microchip and the

dog's microchip number.
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(C) Upon the issuance of a dangerous dog registration 1412
certificate to the owner of a dog, the county dog warden shall 1413
provide the owner with a uniformly designed tag that identifies 1414
the animal as a dangerous dog. If a certificate holder relocates 1415
to a new county, the certificate holder shall follow the 1416
procedure established in division (D) (2) of this section and, 1417
upon the expiration of the certificate issued in the original 1418
county, shall renew the certificate in the new county. 1419

(D) (1) Tf a registered dangerous dog and its owner 1420
relocate to a new address within the county of registration, the 1421
owner shall provide notice of the new address to the county dog 1422
warden within ten days of relocating to the new address. 1423

(2) If a registered dangerous dog and its owner relocate 1424
to a new address in another county, the owner shall do both of 1425
the following within ten days of relocating to the new address: 1426

(a) Provide written notice of the new address and a copy 1427
of the current dangerous dog registration certificate to the 1428
county dog warden of the new county; 1429

(b) Provide written notice of the new address to the 1430
county dog warden of the county where the owner previously 1431
resided. 1432

(E) No owner of a dangerous dog shall fail to present the 1433
dangerous dog registration certificate upon request by any law 1434
enforcement officer, dog warden, or public health official 1435
authorized to enforce this chapter. 1436

(F) The fees and penalties collected pursuant to this 1437
section shall be deposited in the dog and kennel fund of the 1438
applicable county. 1439

(G) Whoever violates division (E) of this section is 1440
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guilty of a minor misdemeanor.

Sec. 955.225. (A) No person shall do any of the following:

(1) Debark or surgically silence a dog that the person

knows or has reason to believe is a dangerous dog;

(2) Possess a dangerous dog if the person knows or has

reason to believe that the dog has been debarked or surgically

silenced;

(3) Falsely attest on a waiver form provided by a

veterinarian under division (B) of this section that a dog is

not a dangerous dog or otherwise provide false information on

that written waiver form.

(B) Before a veterinarian debarks or surgically silences a

dog, the veterinarian may give the owner of the dog a written

waiver form that attests that the dog is not a dangerous dog.

The written waiver form shall include all of the following:

(1) The veterinarian's license number and current business

address;

(2) The number of the dog's registration issued under

section 955.01 of the Revised Code if the dog is so registered;

(3) A reasonable description of the age, coloring, and

gender of the dog as well as any notable markings on the dog;

(4) The signature of the owner of the dog attesting that

the owner's dog is not a dangerous dog;

(5) A statement that division (A) of section 955.225 of

the Revised Code prohibits any person from doing any of the

following:

(a) Debarking or surgically silencing a dog that the
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person knows or has reason to believe is a dangerous dog;

(b) Possessing a dangerous dog if the person knows or has

reason to believe that the dog has been debarked or surgically

silenced;

(c) Falsely attesting on a waiver form provided by a

veterinarian under division (B) of section 955.225 of the

Revised Code that the person's dog is not a dangerous dodg or

otherwise providing false information on that written waiver

form.

(C) It is an affirmative defense to a charge of a

violation of division (A) of this section that the veterinarian

who is charged with the violation obtained, prior to debarking

or surgically silencing the dog, a written waiver form that

complies with division (B) of this section and that attests that

the dog is not a dangerous dog.

(D) Whoever violates division (A) (1), (2), or (3) of this

section is quilty of a felony of the fourth degree.

Additionally, the court shall order that the dog involved in the

violation be humanely destroved by a licensed veterinarian, the

county dog warden, or the county humane society. Until the court

makes a final determination and during the pendency of any

appeal of a violation of division (A) (1), (2), or (3) of this

section, and at the discretion of the dog warden, the dog shall

be confined or restrained in accordance with the provisions of

division (A) of section 955.223 of the Revised Code or at the

county dog pound at the owner's expense.

Sec. 955.23. (A) No county dog warden shall willfully fail

to perform—kis_ the warden's duties under section 955.12 of the

Revised Code or other duties required of dog wardens.
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(B) Whoever violates division (A) of this section is

guilty of a minor misdemeanor.

Sec. 955.24. (A) No person shall obstruct or interfere
with anyone lawfully engaged in capturing an unregistered dog or

making an examination of a dog wearing a tag.

(B) Whoever violates division (A) of this section is

guilty of a minor misdemeanor.

Sec. 955.25. (A) No person shall own, keep, or harbor a
dog wearing a fictitious, altered, or invalid registration tag
or a registration tag not issued by the county auditor in

connection with the registration of such animal.

(B) Whoever violates division (A) of this section is

guilty of a minor misdemeanor.

Sec. 955.261. (A) (1) No person shall remove a dog that has
bitten any person from the county in which the bite occurred
until a quarantine period as specified in division (B) of this
section has been completed. No person shall transfer a dog that
has bitten any person until a quarantine period as specified in
division (B) of this section has been completed, except that a
person may transfer the dog to the county dog warden or to any

other animal control authority.

(2) (a) Subject to division (A) (2) (b) of this section, no
person shall kill a dog that has bitten any person until a
quarantine period as specified in division (B) of this section

has been completed.

(b) Division (A) (2) (a) of this section does not apply to
the killing of a dog in order to prevent further injury or death

or if the dog is diseased or seriously injured.

Page 53

1497
1498

1499
1500
1501

1502
1503

1504
1505
1506
1507

1508
1509

1510
1511
1512
1513
1514
1515
1516
1517

1518
1519
1520
1521

1522
1523
1524



H. B. No. 37
As Introduced

(3) No person who has killed a dog that has bitten any
person in order to prevent further injury or death or if the dog
is diseased or seriously injured shall fail to do both of the

following:

(a) Immediately after the killing of the dog, notify the
board of health for the district in which the bite occurred of

the facts relative to the bite and the killing;

(b) Hold the body of the dog until that board of health

claims it to perform tests for rabies.

(B) The quarantine period for a dog that has bitten any
person shall be ten days or another period that the board of
health for the district in which the bite occurred determines is

necessary to observe the dog for rabies.

(C) (1) To enable persons to comply with the quarantine
requirements specified in divisions (A) and (B) of this section,
boards of health shall make provision for the quarantine of
individual dogs under the circumstances described in those

divisions.

(2) Upon the receipt of a notification pursuant to
division (A) (3) of this section that a dog that has bitten any
person has been killed, the board of health for the district in
which the bite occurred shall claim the body of the dog from its

killer and then perform tests on the body for rabies.

(D) This section does not apply to a police dog that has
bitten a person while the police dog is under the care of a
licensed veterinarian or has bitten a person while the police
dog is being used for law enforcement, corrections, prison or
jail security, or investigative purposes. If, after biting a

person, a police dog exhibits any abnormal behavior, the law
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enforcement agency and the law enforcement officer the police
dog assists, within a reasonable time after the person is
bitten, shall make the police dog available for the board of
health for the district in which the bite occurred to perform

tests for rabies.

(E) As used in this section, "police dog" has the same

meaning as in section 2921.321 of the Revised Code.

(F) Whoever violates this section is guilty of a minor

misdemeanor on a first offense and of a misdemeanor of the

fourth degree on each subsequent offense.

Sec. 955.39. (A) No person shall violate a rabies
quarantine order issued under section 955.26 of the Revised

Code.

(B) Whoever violates division (A) of this section is

guilty of a minor misdemeanor on a first offense and of a

misdemeanor of the fourth degree on each subsegquent offense.

Sec. 955.43. (A) When either a blind, deaf or hearing
impaired, or mobility impaired person or a trainer of an
assistance dog is accompanied by an assistance dog, the person
or the trainer, as applicable, is entitled to the full and equal
accommodations, advantages, facilities, and privileges of all
public conveyances, hotels, lodging places, all places of public
accommodation, amusement, or resort, all institutions of
education, and other places to which the general public is
invited, and may take the dog into such conveyances and places,
subject only to the conditions and limitations applicable to all

persons not so accompanied, except that:

(1) The dog shall not occupy a seat in any public

convevyance.
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(2) The dog shall be upon a leash while using the

facilities of a common carrier.

(3) Any dog in training to become an assistance dog shall
be covered by a liability insurance policy provided by the
nonprofit special agency engaged in such work protecting members
of the public against personal injury or property damage caused

by the dog.

(B) No person shall deprive a blind, deaf or hearing
impaired, or mobility impaired person or a trainer of an
assistance dog who is accompanied by an assistance dog of any of
the advantages, facilities, or privileges provided in division
(A) of this section, sme¥r—or charge the person or trainer a fee

or charge for the dog.

(C) As used in this section, "institutions of education"

means:

(1) Any state university or college as defined in section

3345.32 of the Revised Code;

(2) Any private college or university that holds a
certificate of authorization issued by the Ohio board of regents

pursuant to Chapter 1713. of the Revised Code;

(3) Any elementary or secondary school operated by a board

of education;

(4) Any chartered or nonchartered nonpublic elementary or

secondary school;

(5) Any school issued a certificate of registration by the

state board of career colleges and schools.

(D) Whoever violates division (B) of this section is

gquilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth degree.
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Sec. 955.44. All fines collected for violations of 1611
sections 955.11,—855-2% 955.13, 955.22, 955.223, 955.224, 1612
955.225, 955.23, 955.25, amd—-955.261, and 955.60 of the Revised 1613
Code shall be deposited in the county treasury to the credit of 1614
the dog and kennel fund. 1615

Sec. 955.50. (A) No person shall sell, offer to sell, or 1616
expose for sale, for the purpose of resale or receive for 1617
delivery within this state, or ship from any point within this 1618
state to any point outside this state, for sale to the general 1619
public at retail, any dog under the age of eight weeks. 1620

(B) No person shall receive from outside this state, or 1621
ship from any point within this state to any point outside this 1622
state, for sale to the general public at retail, any dog that is 1623
not accompanied by a certificate, issued by a licensed 1624
veterinarian who is accredited by the United States department 1625
of agriculture and authorized to issue health certificates for 1626
animals in interstate commerce, certifying that the dog is 1627
sufficiently sound and healthy to be reasonably expected to 1628
withstand the intended transportation without adverse effect. 1629

(C) This section does not apply to the transportation of 1630
dogs in interstate commerce by common carrier, provided that 1631
neither the point of shipment nor the point of receiving is 1632
within this state. 1633

(D) No person responsible for the transportation of a 1634
pregnant dog to any point within this state or from any point 1635
within this state to any point outside this state shall be 1636
liable in damages for any injury to or illness of, or the death 1637
of, the dog or any puppies,—wherevr_ whenever the injury, 1638
illness, or death results from the birth of such puppies during 1639

the time the dog is being transported. 1640
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(E) Whoever violates this section is guilty of a minor

misdemeanor on a first offense and of a misdemeanor of the

fourth degree on each subsequent offense.

Sec. 955.54. (A) No person who is convicted of or pleads

guilty to a felony offense of violence committed on or after £he

£ + o PN
cCrrrecCTTTve—COToT

T

f thJ‘.o OC\_/tJI_UJ.J Ao Mav 22, 2012, a felony

violation of any provision of Chapter 959., 2923., or 2925. of

the Revised Code committed on or after the—-effeetivedate—of

his——seetien May 22, 2012, or a violation of division (B) of

section 2919.22 of the Revised Code committed on or after the

effective date of this amendment shall knowingly own, possess,

have custody of, or reside in a residence with either of the
following for a period of £khree—five years commencing either
upon the date of release of the person from any period of
incarceration imposed for the offense or violation or, if the
person is not incarcerated for the offense or violation, upon
the date of the person's final release from the other sanctions

imposed for the offense or violation:

(1) An unspayed or unneutered dog older than twelve weeks

of age;

(2) Any dog that has been determined to be a dangerous dog

under—chapter—9855—ef +the Revised—Coede this chapter.

(B) A—No person described in division (A) of this section
shall fail to microchip for permanent identification any dog

owned, possessed by, or in the custody of the person.

(C) (1) Division (A) of this section does not apply to any
person who is confined in a correctional institution of the

department of rehabilitation and correction.

(2) Division (A) of this section does not apply to any
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person with respect to any dog that the person owned, possessed,

had custody of, or resided in a residence with prior to—he—

ffective—date—of +this seetion May 22, 2012, or, with regard to

a violation of division (B) of section 2919.22 of the Revised

Code, prior to the effective date of this amendment.

(D) Whoever violates division (A) or (B) of this section

is qguilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree.

Sec. 955.60. (A) Any person authorized to enforce this

chapter shall investigate any complaint that indicates a

possible violation of any provision of this chapter involving a

dog.

(B) If, after investigating an alleged violation of this

chapter under division (A) of this section, an authorized person

does not cite a person for or charge a person with a violation,

the authorized person shall notify, in accordance with division

(C) of this section, the owner, keeper, or harborer of the dog

that there has been a complaint regarding the dog and that the

authorized person investigated a possible violation. The notice

shall specify all of the following:

(1) A citation to the applicable provision or provisions

of law at issue;

(2) Contact information for the authorized person;

(3) A reguirement that the owner, keeper, or harborer of

the dog respond to the authorized person indicating that the

owner, keeper, or harborer has received the notice.

(C) The authorized person shall post the notice on the

door of the dwelling at which the dog resides within twenty-four

hours of the authorized person's investigation. The owner,

keeper, or harborer of the dog shall respond within forty-eight
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hours to the authorized person via email, facsimile, telephone, 1699
or social media correspondence, indicating that the owner, 1700
keeper, or harborer has received the notice. If the owner, 1701
keeper, or harborer of the dog responds within a reasonable time 1702
after the forty-eight-hour period, the person is not subject to 1703
division (D) (1) of this section, provided that the response is 1704
accompanied with a reasonable explanation of why the forty- 1705
eight-hour response deadline was not met. 1706

(D) If the owner, keeper, or harborer of the dog does not 1707
respond within: 1708

(1) Forty-eight hours or does not respond within a 1709
reasonable time after the notice is posted as provided in 1710
division (C) of this section, the owner, Kkeeper, or harborer of 1711
the dog shall be fined twenty-five dollars. 1712

(2) Ninety-six hours after the notice is posted, the 1713
owner, keeper, or harborer of the dog shall be fined forty 1714
dollars. 1715

(3) Seven days after the notice is posted, a court may 1716
issue a summons or warrant for the arrest of the owner, Kkeeper, 1717
or harborer of the dog. 1718

(E) The fines collected under this section shall be 1719
deposited in the dog and kennel fund of the applicable county. 1720

Section 2. That existing sections 109.73, 715.23, 901.80, 1721
955.01, 955.02, 955.04, 955.10, 955.11, 955.12, 955.16, 955.21, 1722
955.22, 955.221, 955.222, 955.23, 955.24, 955.25, 955.2061, 1723
955.39, 955.43, 955.44, 955.50, and 955.54 of the Revised Code 1724
are hereby repealed. 1725

Section 3. That section 955.99 of the Revised Code is 1726

hereby repealed. 1727



H. B. No. 37
As Introduced

Section 4. The owner of a dog who holds a valid dangerous
dog registration certificate for the dog that was issued under
division (I) of section 955.22 of the Revised Code as that
section existed prior to its amendment by this act shall renew
the certificate beginning December 1 of the year in which this
act takes effect, but not later than January 31 of the
subsequent year regardless of when the owner would have been
required to renew the certificate under former law. Except as
otherwise provided in this section, the owner shall file the
application in accordance with section 955.224 of the Revised

Code as enacted by this act.

If the renewal required by this section results in a
reduction of the registration period for which the owner paid
fifty dollars under former law, the owner shall pay a
registration fee for the renewal required by this section in an
amount that is prorated as determined by the county auditor of
the county in which the owner resides. Thereafter, the owner
shall renew the dangerous dog registration certificate in
accordance with section 955.224 of the Revised Code as enacted

by this act.

Section 5. This act shall be known as "Savannah's Law."
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